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Mission Statement Vision Statement
We are committed to providing our guests with  To be the Cornbbean's prermier accommodaotions ey
the est possicle lving communities offering  provider in the University Houzing Segmeant -
safe, comfortable and offordoble  living Ty
Spases ol
Core Values

s Maximizing Sharsholder Value — We are committed to year on yedar growth with the intention of
creating maximum value for our shareholdars -
s Ethicol ond Lowful Business Conduct — we adhere o best proctices in our industry ond are e
principled in our business dealings
s Customied Centric- the customer iz ot the haart of all our decizion:.,
] b | Il"'er gre commilttad to continuous Ir1'|:"'.-|l:_:'u'l.'3!"ﬁ'.-.'r1‘| IFy QUF SEerve STy Q1 irermal
® Teamwork and Colloboration - Together evernyone achieves mone; teamwork aond oolobootion
are emphosized amongst our stoff
¥ Sood Compordte Citizens — we are committed to sustainability in the environmeant and o
CERTIMURILY,
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May 2014
First Concession Agreement
signed for the construction and
operation of 1584 new rooms at
UWl Mona.

September 2014
Official groundbreaking and
contractor selected for the

caostruction of the 576 rooms at
Phase 1, Leslie Robinson Hall.

2015

April 2015
Mew subsidiary 13850
Restoration Limited formed.

August 2015
First UWI students mowve onto
Block C at the Leslie Robinson
Hall.

April 2016
U'wi's official opening and
naming of 138 Student Living's
first hall of residence,
Leslie Robinson Hall,

2017

January 2017
Completion of all 4 blocks of
Phase 2, George Alleyne Hall,

under the first Concession
Agreement consisting of 576
rooms and 864 beds.

March 2017
Provided accommodation for
the 5t. Jago High School Track
and Field Team (3rd Place
Winners of Boys' and Girls’
Champs) under 1385L
Short-Term Rental.,

July 2017
Completion of 2 blocks,
consisting of 432 rooms, at
Irvine Hall,
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February 2018
Sir George Alleyne signs the

&= official register of attendees al
a4 the ceremony naming the Hall in

his honour.

.

February 2018
UW1's official opening and
naming of 138 Student Living's
newly constructed and operated
George Alleyne Hall.

2019

March 2019
138 Student Living launches
Summmeer Accommodation

Programme.

——

June 2019
Cranston Ewan appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of 138
Student Living.

138 Student Living was on
display at the annual Jamaica
Product Exchange (JAPEX).

2020

June 2020
138 Student Living collaborated
with the Ministry of Health &
Wellness to provide quarantine
accommeodation to individuals
entering the country during the
COVID-19 pandemic.
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2021

August 2021
Signing of Heads of Agreement
between 138 Student Living and
LW, Mona Campus. The signing
took place on August 5, 2021 at
UWI Mona Campus.

2022

September 2022
Occupancy rebounded to 90%
following the lifting of the
COVID-19 restrictions and the
recpening of face-to-face
classes at the UWI, Mona
Campus.




DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their Report for 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited and its
subsidiary 1385L Restoration Limited for the financial year ended September 30, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Company shows pre-tax profit for the year of 5335,052
million, taxation of 516,690 million, and a net profit after tax of 318,362 million. Details of these
results, along with a comparison with the previous year's performance and the state of affairs of the
Company, are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis and the Financial Statements which
are included as part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at September 30, 2022 were lan Parsard (Chairman), Ivan Carter
{Deputy Chairman), John W Lee, Sharon Donaldson-Levine, Marrynette Lee, Brenda-Lee Martin and
Peter Pearson.

AUDITORS

The Auditors of the Company, BDO Chartered Accountants of 26 Beechwood Awenue, Kingston 5,
Jamaica have expressed their willingness to continue in office. The Directors recommend their
reappointment.

DIVIDEND

A dividend payment of 50.13 per stock unit was declared payable to shareholders on record at the close
of business on January 6, 2023, payable February 23, 2023.

EMPLOYEES

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the management and staff for their
contribution and commitment to the Company during the year under review.,

On behalf of the Board

Dated this 9th day of February 2023
AP—d

lan Parsard
Chairman

138 Student Living Jamisca Lid Arreiol Regart 2022




BADMINTON COURT

i3 Hludent LngOamEsca s B Aoirwicl Bepart 2027




CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

FY 2021/2022 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE & OUTLOOK

We are pleased to submit the Annual Report for 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited (1385L) and its
subsidiary 1385L Restoration Limited (1385LR) for the year ended September 30, 2022,

The 2021/2022 financial year was a very challenging yet dynamic one. The Government of Jamaica
announced a relaxation in the Covid-19 measures in April 2022, which in turn resulted in the return of
face-to-face classes at The University of the West Indies (Mona). As a result, occupancy in the last
month of the financial year rebounded to ninety percent (90%).

The resilience of 138501 was clearly demonstrated as despite the Covid-19 pandemic restricting face to
face classes for the majority af the year, the Company recorded its best ever profitability.

The Company reported a net profit of J5318.36 million after taxation, compared to a net profit of
J5221.28 million for the previous year. This translates to earnings per stock unit of $0.77 cents, up fram
50.53 cents in the prior year. A more in-depth analysis of the performance of the business and eur
overall results is presented in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Report.

Our success in restructuring the Company's loan note portfolio te fixed interest rates and with an
eighteen month’s moratorium of principal payments was positive for the Company, as interest rates
rose sharply due to the effects of inflation on the economy. Additionally, the restructuring exercise
allowed us breathing space to manage through the pandemic.

Our achievement is made possible by the continued guidance of the Board of Directors. We are grateful
to you for the expert leadership you continue te provide. Thanks to our management team and the
hardworking staff who continue to show resilience amidst the challenges. Thanks to you our
sharehalders for your continued confidence in 1385L. 13850 is committed to long-term growth and
sustainability and the delivery of value to all our stakeholders.

We look forward with great optimism to new opportunities in the 2022/2023 financial year as with
God's guidance we chart the way forward for the Company.

0 A W

lan Parsard
Chairman

3B Student Living Jomoksd LEd. Annual Repadt 2022




NHEWLY RENOVATED LAUNDRY AREA

Resident boaking
appointment to use
the laundry facility

at Leslie Robinson

Hall.

138 Studant Livirgg Jamosco L e Repart 20E7




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

&M PARSARD
Chalrmer

lan Parsard joined the Jamaica Broilers Group in
1989 a= a Senior Systems Analyst and was promoted
to Project Leader in 1993, He progressed throush a
number of Senior Management positions including
being appointed Yice President, where he has held
responsibility  for Accounting, Finance, Eneroy,
Operations and Corporate Planning at varying
intervals over his near 30 years with the Company.
In 2012, he was appointed as the Group's Senjor
Yice President and currently has responsibility for
the Group's Financial portfalio.

Though committed to the growth and development
of the Group, e also serves as a Director of the
Mustard Seed Agricultural Programme, Pan Jam
Investments Limited; Immediate Past President of
the Jamaica Broilers Group Cooperative Credit
Union; and current Chairmamn of the Board of 138
Student Living Jamaica Limited. He also rears
tivestock, providing jobs for several persons within

the parish of 5t. Catherine.

lan holds a Bachelor of Science Degree with First
Class Honours in Computer Science and Electronics
from the University of the West Indies, a Master in
Business Administration with First Class Honours
from the Wharton"s S5School of Business at the
University of Pennsylvania where he graduated as
the Palmer Scholar and 5 & Certified Chartered
Aoccountanl.

IYAN CARTER
Depuly Chalrman

Ivan Carter is Group C.E.0. of Delta Capital
Partners, a Private Equity Group in Jamaica. He
provides Strategic Management to the Delta Group,
oversees all wverticals of the Group, and directs
corporate services. He also leads areas such as
Funding the development of Private Equity deals
and shepherds deals to consummation. Ivan has an
expansive career as an Executive leader who has
conceived and played leading roles in volumes of
strategic initiatives over the years. Up to April
2020, he served as Group Chief Financial Officer
{CFD) at Sagicor Group Jamaica where he spent
mare than 17 years and for over ten of those years
carried the twinned responsibility of Group Chief
Information Officer (CIO). Prior to this he Lead the
Finance Division at Sagicor Group in Barbados.

Ivan is a member of the Board of Directors of Delta
Capital Partners, its subsidiary companies and a
number of its affiliate companies. He is alsa a
member of the Board of Directors of iCreate
Limited and Yisual ¥Yibes Limited.

Ivan’s academics include a Masters Degree in
Business Administration (MBA), M5c Degree in
Management Information Systems, Fellow of the
Institute  [FLMI),
Accounting programmes, including CGA and CPA and

Life Management various

Certificates and Diplomas in several subject areas.
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JOHM LEE
Man-Exesutive Director

John Lee is the Chairman of K limited. John has
over the past 15 years presided over 8 number af
developments including Phases 1, 2 and 3 of the
Company’'s U'WI Mona Project.

&5 a former Lead Partner of the Advisory Division of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Jamaica, John has led or
been associated with a number of major financial
transactions undertaken in the region in the recent
past. These include the structuring of the first 30
year inflation-indexed bond used to finance
Highway 2000 and lead negotiator in the acquisition
of Harmony Cove in Western Jamalca. John has also
been the lead advisor and negotiator in the major
GOJ divestment initiatives including, but not
limited to those relating to the sugar, coffee and
hospitality industries. John is a graduate of the

Scottish Business School at the University of
Strathclyde, Scotland.

B SnasenTiven g Jormokca Lod.

MARRYTMETTE LEE
Man-Exesutive Director

Marrynette & Lee, a Director of K Limited, has over
the last 13 years presided over the design and
construction of all of the projects undertaken by K
Limited including the implementation of the 138
Student Living construction timetable. As part of K
Limited®s strategy, Marrynette has undertaken the
property management of a npumber of its
complexes, circa 100 units, in an effort to ensure
that they are maintained to a high standard.

Apart from the above, Marrynette specializes in
Risk Mitigation for companies and industries gained
from working as an Insurance Underwriter in the
general  insurance  industry at the senior
management level.

Marrynette holds a Bachelor of Science [Hons)
degree from the University of the West Indies
(Mona) and an MBA from Manchester Business School
{England).

el Report 2022



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PETER PEARSON
Mon-Executive Dractor

Peter Pearson s a graduate of Cornwall College and
The University of Weast Indies from which he holds a
BSc. (Manapement Studies). He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants and a Fellow of
the Chartered Association of Certifled Accountants.
He iz a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Jamaica in charge of the firm’s Montego Bay office.
He has had significant experience in  public
accounting in tourism and hospitality, banking,
government, among other industries, He is a
Director and Audit Committee Member of a number
of companies, some of which are listed on the
Jamaica Stock Exchange. He has been a Justice of
the Peace since 19E8.

SHARON DOMALDSOM-LEVINE
Man-Executive Director

Sharon Donaldson-Levine hails from Lucea in the
parish of Hanover where she successfully completed
her studies at Rusea's High School and matriculated
to pursue tertiary education at the College of Arts,
Science B Technology, naw the University of
Technology Jamaica.

That desire for academic excellence drove her to
complete several professional courses leading to
her being qualified as a Certified Chartered
Accountant [ACCA). She holds an LLB Law Degresa
from the University of Londan, and an MBA from the
University of Bangor, Wales. 5She is an
Attormey-at-Law and a Chartered Accountant.

She served as the Financial Controller, Company
Secretary and General Manager for General
Accident Insurance between 1989-2007. She was
promoted to the position of Managing Director of
the Company in 2008, a position she holds to date.
She is a course Director at the Horman Manley Law
School and Lecturer at Richmend Academy where
she prepares stidents for ACCA Certification. Mrs.
Donaldson-Levine serves on several Boards both as
member and as Chair. She is the Treasurer of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jamaica
[ACCA), President of the Insurance Association of
Jamaica (IAJ) and member of the Board of the
Jamaica Environment Trust (JET).
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BRENDA-LEE MARTIN

Man-Exesutive Director

Brenda-Lee Martin joined Sagicer Group Jamaica in
December 1992 where she sérved in numerous
capacities until September 30, 2021. 5he is
currently the CEQ of Sagicor Real Estate ¥ Fund
Limited.

Brenda-Lee has a wealth of experience in
Investments Management and was appointed Vice
President - Asset Management in 2015. She was also
appointed Chiel Executive Officer of the Sagicor
Real Estate X Fund on June 1, 2078.

Under her leadership, she bolstered the growth and
development of Sagicor's Pension Portfolio with
current combined totals in excess of JMDSZO0BN as
at Sept 30, 202%. In addition to the pension
portfolio, she also had oversight of real estate and
the property services business of the company.
Sagicor Property Services Limited remains the
largest manager of private real estate on behalf of
Sagicor and third-party property owners. 5PS
currently manages approx. 2.5m sg. feet of real
estate.

Brenda-Lee holds a Bachelor of Science Degree from
the University of the West [Indies, Maona in
Economics B Management as well as Master's of

Business Administration degree in Finance from the "\
University of Wales, Manchester Business Schaoaol.
She alzo holds a FLMI LDMA designation. gy
f
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Cronston Ewan Semaour Millen
Chief Executive Officer Finance & Accounting Manoger

Adrion Brown Charyl Clarke
Dperations Monogear Human Resource Manoger
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DEPARTMENTS & TEAMS

138 Btudant Lang fomaica Lid el Repoct 2023




DEPARTMENTS & TEAMS

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH SAFETY SECURITY SUPERVISORS
& LANDSCAPING TEAM

138 Btudant Lang fomaica Lid el Repoct 2023




DEPARTMENTS & TEAMS

HOUSEKEEPING DEPARTMENT SHORT-TERM RENTAL

RESIDENT ADVISORS S5DM & RESIDENT ADVISORS
GEORGE ALLEYMNE HALL LESLIE ROBINSON HALL IRVINE HALL

38 Student Living Jamaica Lid Argiliol Aapcdt 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

COMPANY OVERYIEW

138 Student Living and [ts Subsidiary 1385L Restoration Limited (the Group) is
incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica. It s listed on the Main Market of the
Jamaica Stock Exchange, and Its office is located at the Leslie Robinson Hall,

2 Castries Drive, University of the West Indies, Mona, Kingston 7.

The Financial Statements included as part of this Report, presents the operations
and financial position of the Group for the twelve months ended September 30,
2022,

The Group is established Lo construct and rent living facilities at the Mona Campus
under a 63-year concession agreement granted by the University of the West Indies, Mona.

THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

During the Group's financial year, the economy continueed o be negatively impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic
whilst throughout the vear, the Government implemented strategies to reopen the economy on a phased basis in
order to stimulate growth. Online classes continued Tor most of the year while international travel slowly
rebounded.

FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE

The 2021/202¢ financial year saw a continuation of the Covid-19 pandeméc which started at the beginning of
2020, In September 2022, The University of the West Indies (Mona) returned Lo face-lo-Tace classes as the
preferred learning modality, International travel restrictions were relaxed resulting in international students
being able Lo return to the Halls of Residence,

Revenues Increased by 393, from 5860 million in the prior year to 51.3 billion. The Increased revenue |5 supported
by increased rental rates and contribution from the short-term rental business which allowed the Group to record
a profit before tax of %335 million,

FIVE (5) YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B34404 | 1054953 | 1325308 | B50479 199, B54
9% 26 26H -35% 0%

s18,142 |  7oe078 | 7s7ses | azzenr|  so131s

-51% -53% 5h A4% -19%
406390 281,531 ISTESE | 24N 363 487
314 1% EH o] i)

jora28)| (19607) |  3103ea | 10g253 335 N52

~SE1%: i) 1683% AT i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

REVENUE SUMMARY

Revenue (5'000)

noli 2018 o] el 2023

Total revenue increased by $33% million to 51.3 billion or 39E,

REVENUE BY CLASS

Revenue Class Sep-21 Sep-22

5'000 5000
Long-Term Revenue 767,360 1,003,663 43%
Short-Term Revenue 45,845 92,297 101%
Other Incame 47,274 13,854 -71%
| Total Income [ 860,479 | B54 |  39% |

Long-term rental income increased by 43%. Short-term rental income increased by 101% while other income
decreased by 1%, The reduction in ether income is primarily due to loss of income generated from room storage
as students returned to halls and retrieved their belongings.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative B Other Expenses
M. e
Fal s
Fornle) =
130008
= 1FLOSD
o Bl Bl Bl B e L]
Ll
LR L] mea fitli mis i i FF]
FHTE 1]
B |
200000
W Eoal Coar w Unine # Tede phiiiye. buerier B Cebie
Esgseres g Credir Legs w Lid LE it w LEged & Poiesion ! Feey
B Frpmin B A arrisvanrs m Lihe Fgsmnes
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

We continue to manage the Company in keeping with the cost containment measures that were implemented in
2019, Cost reductions were recorded for telephone, Internet and cable, and legal and professional fees. Other
costs line items were aligned with normal business operations.

FINANMCE COST

Finance cost increased by 5121 million to 5363 million or 50% due to increases in interest rates. During 2021 we
restructured our loan notes from variable interest rate to fixed interest rate. Interest rates on these fived rate

notes range from 7.9 percent to 8.5 percent, which are lower than the variable interest rate that would have
been charged.

Finance Cost ($'000)

406, 300
280,551
157
1018

35§
201 Feibail

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

For the 202172022 financial year, the Group recorded net profit after tax of $318.4 million, compared to a profit
after tax of 5221.3 million for the prior year. Sharcholders' equity increased to 54.5 billion from $4.3 billion in
2021, Total assets of 510.13 billion increased from 510.08 billion last year. We continue to manage our cash spend
and prioritize our expenditure to ensure continued sustainability.

Net Profit (5'000)

_=x
<D o

mm 013 2030 201 m

Earnings Per Stock Unit [EPS] increased to %0.77 when compared to prior year of 50.53.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Earnings Per Stock Uniit

EQUITY AND LIQUIDITY

51000 5o00 5000 ET00

it Cot P ASfls 8,118,831 80,415,551 s,ﬂun.'qul 8,707,110 B,634.471
Current Assets raaren| A6l pabA99|  1,34z,270] 1,098,504
Total Asets a.6a2,571| 098,074) 1001091 10,049,580 9, 7e 7S
Current Linhilithes BI5.A63] 95791 1, 0eEBe1) 9, 3E95RE|  1,04TER
Huars-Copan LLabMitisg 4 B7EING| 4479391 4,378.686] 4,384,537 4,0900H1
Eharmholdes Equity 3,157,433 5,544, e I.-ﬂ‘?‘_.-lill 4,334,945 4,555,114
Total Equity & Lisbile B4z 5M | 0,983,080 m.m:ﬂ 10,049, %80 | 9 Fa g
ebd to Equity Batio 'Lﬁ} 'm:- \ x r;#.i! “1
| Loty Rt ; ERT] T ) T [

As at September 30, 2022 the Group's debt to equity is 0.92 which is a slight improvement when compared to
September 30, 2021 of 0.97.

STOCK PRICE AMD MARKET CAPITALIZATION

As at September 30, 2022, the Company’s shares traded at 55.33 compared to the price of $5.00 each in the prior
year. The increase of $0.33 resulted in a higher market capitalization of 52.2 billion compared to 52.1 billion in
the prior year.

CAPITAL POSITION

Management's objective is to manage capital to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. We
continue to manage our available capital to satisfy applicable strategic objectives and regulatory standards.

Management monitors the environment for any new developments that may adversely affect the Group. It is

projected that the Group will continue to generate future positive cash flows to satisfy its operational
requirements.

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

OPERATIONS

During the year, the Group benefitted from initiatives thal were implemented in 2019, these Initiatives have
resulted in significant improvements in operational efficiencies and cost reduction. We intend to continue with
Lhem as the platform on which the Company operates,

Steps have been taken towards increased digitalisation In order to respond to current and Tuture needs of the
business and to manage risks.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year we continued our commitment to the sustainability of our environment and Lo the community in
which we operate. We remalned guided by the wider UWI, Mona Campus administration regulations, in the
implementation of environmental-Triendly practices. We continue to support the Student Leadership within the
Halls of Residence, During the year, we extended our support through donations to the Jamalca Hatlonal
Children’s Home.

LOOKING AHEAD

The global pandemic brought with it many unprecedented challenges. We have successfully navigated these
challenges. We are very optimistic as the Tinancial year has ended with a rebound In occupancy above the S0%
levels. As we look ahead to new opportunities, we do so with God®s grace and guidance.

Thanks to our team of committed employees who continue to show resilience in the most challenging times.
Thanks to our Board of Directors for their continued expert guldance during the year. We remain focused and
optimistic about the future of our Company and its ability to deliver sustained positive resulls to our
stakeholders.

5

o

-

Cranston Ewan
Chief Executive Officer

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid Annual Repoet 206832




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

138 Student Living Jamalca Limited is committed to high standards of governance. The Company's
Board of Directors implements the corporate strategy and manages the company to the benefit of all
stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMPOSITION

The Board is comprised of seven members who are qualified, objective, committed and possess diverse
ckill sets to effectively discharge their duties. The names of the Directors and their gualifications are
set out in the Directors' profile section of this Report. The Board officials met four times for the year
with ad hot procedures adopted for urgent matters.

ATTENMDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS BOARD 2-Now-2021 10-Feb-  3-May-
MEETINGS 2022 2022
lohn Lee 4 v o S <
lan Parsard (Chairman) 4 o o <
Marrynette Lee 4 v v v o
Sharon Donaldson-Levine | 4 o v -.-" v
Peter Pearson ' 4 o J o 11"
Brenda-Lee Martin 4 v v v v
lvan Cartar 4 o v v 1"
COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted three Committees:

Audit and Compliance Committee

The Audit Committee is charged with assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities for the financial reporting process, the system of internal controls, the audit process,
and the Company's process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of

Conduct.

Sharon Domaldson - Chalrperson, John Lee, Ivan Carter, lan Parsard

27-0ct-2021 2-Dec-2021 I-Feb-2022 26-Apr-2022 26-Jul-2022

Sharon Donaldson of o of o o
(Chairperson)

lohn Lee 7] v v o v
Ivan Carter o J

lan Parsard v o W o 4
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SUB-COMMITTEES

Concession Commitbes

The Concession Committee monitors the existing concession agreements and explores new
opportunities,

Brenda-Lee Martin - Chairperson, John Lee, Peter Pearson

2-Mov-2021 10-Feb-2022 2-Aupg-2022
Brenda-Lee Martin o i J
{Chairperson)
Peter Pearson o 4 "
John Lee - . v - Vv

Human Resource and Compensation Committee

The Human Resource and Compensation Committee oversees and evaluates the Company's overall
compensation structure and programmes. It also nominates, evaluates and propose potential
candidates for future membership of the Board of the Company and thereof.

lvan Carter - Chairman, Sharon Donaldson-Levine, Brenda-Lee Martin

Members 79-0ct-2021 B-Feb-2022 29-Apr-2022 2-Jul-2021
lvan Carter  J v o o
(Chairman)

Brenda-lLee 4 ™
Martin

Sharon

Donaldsen- | ¥ o v
Levine

128 Srudant Livirg Jomassa Lid Annual Repst 202




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

The Company's Corporate Governance Policy was approved by the Board on December 13, 2016 and 1s
available on the Company's Website, http://138studentliving. com/about-us/ policies-and-manuals /

Shareholders who have queries and requests can direct them to the investor Relations Officer /o
138 Student Living Jamaica UWI, Mona Kingston 7 or email info@138studentliving.com.

Shareholders can request a copy of the Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting by sending written
correspondence to the Investor Relations Officer at the address indicated above.

Eioakal 10

BEORGE ALLEYNE HALL
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SHAREHOLDINGS

QUARTERLY REPORT
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

TOP TEN (10) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

areanigy |
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For purposes of compliance with Bule 407 of the Jamaica Stock Exchange Rules, details of stockholdings
of Directors and Senior Management and their connected pérsons as at 30 September 2022 are set out

hereurider:

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND CONNECTED PARTIES

L& FARRARE HILJLLN paRoy L EFE FARSATN 1
(oA w. e Hlﬂl: LIMITED - ﬁ{ﬁﬁ
VAN CARTFR. Tl
SLARCE DA LT HALIEES
MARKENETTELLE ratfh LprEn wmmq
IETEIS-LET M ARTIN
FETER FEAESOH rq|i?mmruum 1ru-,|.|n:r‘
SHAREHOLDINGS OF SENIOR MAMAGEMENT ANMD CONMNECTED PARTIES
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IBDO

INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinfon

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited and fts
subsidiary (the group) and the financial statements of 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited standing
alone (the company) set out on pages 38 to 97, which comprise the group and the company's statement
of financial position as at 30 September 2022, and the group and company’s statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the group and the company as at 30 September 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) and
the requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational Standards on Auditing (15As). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the
Audit af the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and the
company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Internmational
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) {IESBA
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBEA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean, and we
do not provide a separate opinion an these matters.

Valuation of Financial Asset - Service Concession Rights Classified as Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income
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BDO

ALIDITORS" REFORT (CONT'D

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limited

Key Audit Matters

[see note 13 to the consolidated financial statements for management’s related accounting policies
and disclosures]

Financial asset - service concession rights is carried at fair value, based on triennial valuation by a
professional qualified valuator and in the intervening periods by the directors. For the year ended 30
September 2021, the valuation was done by the directors, with a resulting fair value of 57.08B for 138
Student Living Limited and 51.368 for 138 SL Restoration Limited. The surplus or deficit is taken to
other comprehensive income.

The Directors use an fnvestments approach via a discounted cash flow as its valuation methodology.
The projected net income and a discounted cash flow of those likely net income are taken account of,
along with various assumptions. The magnitude and materiality of this balance, the complexity of the
models used, the use of management assumptions and the potential for misstatement from the use of
inappropriate yields caused us to focus on this balance.

MHow our oudit addressed the Key Audit Matter

1} We assessed the directors valuatfon techniques by using our own internal valuation consultants,
who examined the basis and assumptions and analysed the results in detail to assess
reasonableness of the fair value amount obtained.

Z) We obtained an understanding of the nature of the work performed by management, the objective
and the scope as well as understanding and assessing the methods and assumptions used thus
determining the appropriatenass of the valuation method used to estimate the fair value.

3) We recalculated the amounts disclosed for fair value of the group’s and the company's financial
asset-sevvice concession rights for mathematical accuracy.

4) We further checked that the required disclosures were done in the financial statements, as well as
the appropriateness of the reporting of the transactions.

Based on the audit procedures performed, no adjustments to the financial statements were deemed
NECessary.
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EPENDENT AL RS' REPORT (C e

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limitad

Key Audit Matters (cont'd)
Expected credit losses In relation te financial assets.

See notes 3(i)iii), 5(c)(ii) and 17 to the financial statements for management's related policies and
disclosures,

The determination of expected credit losses (*ECL') on financial assets is highly subjective and requires
management to make significant judgement and estimates involving the application of a forward
locking expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model, which takes into account reasonable and
supportable forward looking information and will result in the earlier recognition of impairment
provisions. These estimates involve increased judgment as a result of the economic impacts of COVID-
1% on the group’s financial assets. The most significant impact of the implementation of the
impairment model is to the provisioning policy for the group's trade receivables. The group estimates
expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables using a provision matrix based on historical credit loss
experience. Customers were placed in aging buckets and a default risk percentage calculated uging the
incurred loss analysss over delinquent accounts, the credit history, risk profile of each customer and
the aging of recefvables,

How aur audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

» The group's accounting policy as it relates to the impairment provision for trade receivables
was obtained and the reasonableness of the accounting policy assessed in relation to the
requirements of the standard.

= We established an understanding of management's ECL model including source data, the
effectiveness of the implementation and the mathematical accuracy of the model. We tested
the reliability of the source data used in the design of the moadel by confirming a sample to the
historical data.

= We tested manual and automated controls over the aging of receivables. Our testing of
automated controls involved using our own information technology specialist to test the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the automated controls,

= We evaluated the appropriateness of management's assumptions and judgement in arriving at
the forward looking multiple, by assessing the basis of the multiple economic scenarios used
and the weighting assigned by management.

= We determined whether the default risk percentage was reasonably calculated and correctly
applied to the relevant buckets of accounts recelvable.

Based on the audit procedures performed, no adjustments to the financial statements were deemed
MECESsary.
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS' RE ONT'D)

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limited

Other Information

Management 5 responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report but does not include the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements and our auditors'
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditors’ report.

Qur opinion on the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our awdit of the consolidated and stand-alone financial statements, our
respensibility Is Lo read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in daing
50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and stand-
alone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS and the Jamaican Companies Act, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the group’s and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the group and the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the group’s and the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to fssue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not 2 guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.
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IBDO

HDEPENDENT A OR5" REPORT (CONT"

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limited

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an auwdit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the everride of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of EXPrEssing an
opinten on the effectiveness of the group's and the company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinien. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group and the company to cease to
continue as a gofng concemn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and stand-alone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that presents a true and fair
View,

Cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the awdit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In
internal control that we identify during our audit.

138 Srudent Living Jomaico Lid Annual Repoet 206832




IBDO

INDE AUDITORS' REPORT {(CONT'D)

To the Members of
138 Student Living Jamaica Limited

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarging independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemnance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Repart on additional matters as required by the Jamaican Companies Act

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of those
records, and the financlal statements, which are in agreement therewith, give the information required by the
Jamalcan Companies Act, in the manner required.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Balvin Vanriel.

BbO

Chartered Accountants

28 December 20232
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Restated Restated
Haote 2022 2021 ;“EE
5'000 5000 ‘000

REVEHUE:
Income & 1,185 960 813,205 1,217,865
Other operating income 7 13,894 47,174 107,428
1,199 854 B&0,479 1,325,293

EXPENSES:

Administrathve and other expenses B {501,315} [ 422.047) [ _757,566)
PROFIT FROM OPERATION 698,539 438,462 567,717
Finance costs 10 (_363.487)  (_242,209) (_257.338)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 335,052 196,153 310,369
Taxation 11 {__16,6%0) 23,0026 i 58.643)
HWET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 316,362 221,279 251,726
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Item that will or may not be reclassified to

profit or loss -
Change in falr value of financial asset -
service concession rights 13 {98,143} [ 355.818) (1,328,037)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR 220,219 { 134,539) (1,076,311)

EARMINGS PER STOCK UNIT 12 5 077 £ 0,53 S 0,61
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Restated Restated
Note 1022 2021 1020
5000 5'000 E'Mﬂ
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Financial asset -service concession rights 13 8,442,711 8,513,000 8,861,443
Property, plant and equipment 14 1,117 1,768 1,352
Deferred tax assets 15 180,643 192,342 200,777
Other asset . - 3,850
B, 624 471 3. 707 110 G, 070 462
CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables 17 003,193 1,277 833 B19,946
Taxation recoverable 24,767 24,742 14 509
Short term deposits 13 . Ta0 158,560
Cash and cash equivalents 19 170,444 38,935 43,4984
1,008,504 1,342,270 946,499
9722975 10,049,380 10,016,261
EQUITY AND LIABILI MES
EQUITY:
Share capital 0 ™ 153 71,153 711,153
Fair value reserqe A 2,949 430 3,047,573 3,403,3"M
Retained earnings BE4,551 Sab, 189 344,910
4,555,134 4,334,915 4,469,454
MOMN-CURREMT LIABILITIES:
Lang term loans 21 3,847,369 4,211,895 4,206,004
Redeemable preference shares 20 172,642 172 642 172,642
4,020,011 4,384 537 _4,378.646
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 24 561,874 1,113,745 825179
Taxatlon 13,322 7,183 47 G
Short term loans 15 210,000 210,000 135,000
Current portion of long term loans 3 362,634 - 166,038
1,147,830 1,329,928 1,168,861
9,722,975 10,049,380 10,016,961

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

,/-E._"n P‘— .l-.. @\A‘M&

lan Parsard Sharon Dohaldson-Levine  Director

Chalrman
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Fair
Share Value Retained
Capital Beserve Earnings Tetal
BALANCE AT 30 SEFTEMBER 2020
(45 previowsly stated) 721,153 3,403,391 405, 9463 4,534,507
Deferred tax adjustment (note 30) = 3 (_63.003)  (__63.053)
BALAMCE AT 30 SEFTEMEER Z0Z0 (Restaled) P M 3,403,391 344,910 4,465,454
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Het profit - - 224,279 224,279
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Chamge in fair value of financial asset -
service concession rights . {__355.818} . [ 355 818)
= {__355. 818} 221,279 134,539}
BALAWCE AT 30 SEFTEMBER 2021 721,153 3,047 573 S6b, 189 4,334,915
TOTAL COMPREHENWSIVE INCOME
Het profit ' . 318,362 318,362
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Change in fair value of financial asset -
service concession rights = 58,143} = [ -98.143)
i 98 14%) 318,362 220,219
BALANCE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022 721,153 2,949,430  B84,551 4,555,134
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022
3000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Het profit 38,362
ltems rat affecting cash resources:
Effect of foreign exchange loss/(gain) 4,353
Taxation expense 16,690
Interest income i &)
Interest expense 363 487
Depreciation G4
(Losa ) /gain on disposal of financial assets i 121
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment 7
703,469
Chamges in operating assets and liabitities:
Other aswet -
Receivables 374, 540
Taxation recoverable [ 25)
Payabies (572,973}
Cash provided by operating activities Al 011
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to finencial asset - service concession rights | 27,854)
Short term deposits 0
Interest recedved (Y]
Proceeds from dizposal of financial assets 12
Cach (Lsed in)/ provided by investing activities {27,000
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid { 340,237}
Loans recelved 75,000
Loans repaid (_T6.8%2)
Cash wsed in Mnancing activities {342,129)
INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 135,862
Exchange affect on foreign cash balance [ 4,353
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 38,935
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EMD OF YEAR 19 170,444

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid Anrucl Repart 302

111,279

I B4}
[ 25,026)
I 441)

242,209
624
i 3}

437,776

1,850
(662,156)

I 234}

362,133
141,369

( 7,375)

257,799
1,566
7

51,997

(313,632)
75,000
{160,147}

(398,779)

231,716

{ 1,799)
58, 643

| 7,875)
257,358
624

558,687

| 47
(323,245}
i 1.739)
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022

Restated Restated
Hote 2022 2021 z2020
$'000 00 5000

REVEMUE:
Income 6 774,979 646,156 689,355
Other aperating income 7 A7 B 72.014 117.691
222,833 T8 170 BOT 046

EXPEMSES:

Administrative and other expenses B (335.571) (40 b | (496,757}
PROFIT FROM OPERATICH 487,253 15,334 30,294
Finance cosks 10 {248, 262 ) {170, 600 ) {185,177}
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION £38,990 144,724 125,117
Taxation 11 (_11,2%0} {__28,175) [ 31,2486}
HET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 227,700 116,549 93,8
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IHCOME:

ltem that will or may not be reclassified to

profit or loss -

Change in fair value of financial asset -
service concession rights 58,685 852,119 (272, 486)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 286,385 264, 658 (478,333
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Restated Restated
Mote 2022 2021 2020
5'000 5'000 5'000
ASSETS
MOM-CURREMT ASSETS:
Financial asset - service concession rights 13 7,009, 701 7,000,000 6,156,048
Property, plant and equipment 14 1.117 1,768 2,392
Deferred tax assets 15 122,435 133,715 161,900
Imvestment in subsidiary 16 dbh, 000 A6t 000 a6, 000
Cither asset - - 2,133
1.669.233 1.610.493  5.788.673
CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables 17 632,393 948,407 217,756
Taxation recoverable 22,708 22,693 22,522
Short term deposits 18 - 313 235,400
Cash and cash equivalents 19 137,030 28,911 16,584
_B12.133 1,000,324 782,282
8,481,286 B610.817 7,370,953
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY:
Share capital 20 711,153 721,153 711,153
Fair value resemne 1 3,213,164 3,164,479 2,312,340
Other reserve 22 A, 00 a6, 000 66,000
Retained eamings 498, BT 270,587 154, 038
4, 908, 604 4,622,219 3,653,531
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long berm loans 23 2,583,323 2, 78%,003 2. 775,977
Redeemable preference shares 20 172,642 172,642 172,642
2,755 965 2,961,645 2,948 619
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 24 401,137 B1&,953 B&7 Te7
Short term loans 25 210,000 210,000 135,000
Current portion of long term Ioans 23 __205, 680 - 166,038
816,817 L026,933 968,805
B.481,386 8.610,817  7.570.955

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors an 28 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Ao P e m—.a

lan Parsard Chairman Sharor Donaldson-Levine

MMrectaor
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Fair
Share Walue Other
Capital Ee Reserve
§ 'O00 § OO0 5 "Qo0

BALAMCE AT 30 SEFTEMBER 2020
{As previously stated) 721,153 2,312,340 466,000
Deferred tax adjustment (note 30) -

BALAMCE AT 30 SEFTEMBER 2020

Retained

Earnings
2000

219,091

Taotal

3,718,584

( 65,053) ( 65,053}

{Restated) 721,153 2,312,340 A6, 000 134,038 3,653,511
TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Het profit 116,549 116,549
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Chamge In fair value of financial asset -
service concession rights - §53,139 X - 853,139
32,139 116,529 68,658
BALANCE AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2021 f81,153 1,164,479 466,000 270,587 4,622,219
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Het profit 227, 100 227,700
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Change In fair value of financial asset -
zarvice concession rights - 58 &85 - 58. 685
- 58685 - 247 TOk 285 38
BALANCE AT 30 SEFTEMBER 2022 £21.023 L243.004 456,000  AFE.67 4,208,604
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Motes 2022
000
CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met profit 227,100
Iems mot alfecting cash resources:
Effect of forelgn exchange loss/{gain} 3,967
Deferred taxation 11 11,2%0
Interest income 7 i 37
Depreciaticn 14 ad4
Interest expense 10 248, 362
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment 14 7
{Gain}/ loss on disposal of financial assets i 12}
A%, 401
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Other asset -
Receivahles 196 012
Taxation recoverable i 15}
Fayabies (436, 173)
Cash provided by operating activities 391,245
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 57
Financial asset - service concession rights 13 i 12,016)
Short term deposits 13
Proceeds from disposal of financial azzets 12
Cashiused in}/provided by investing activities {11,634}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid (227, 5905)
Loan received 25 75,00
Loan repaid 5 [_453,000)
Cash used in Tinancing activities (227,905)
INCREASE IH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 111,686

Exchange effect on fareign cash balance [ 3.567)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28,911
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 19 137,030
138 Studant Living Jamaico Lid 45 Arnual Repod 2092

Restated
2021

21000

116,549

(1,045}
28,175

[ J8E)
Gd4
170,600

| 3)

314,516

2,313

{431,581)

([ 172)
203,587

88,683
1,312

[ 813}
225,106
7

223,612

{225,001}
75,000
1153.012)

(303,013)
11,282

1,045
16,564

28,911

Restat=d
2020

$'000

93,691

i 1,560)
31,226

i 6,848)
624
135,177

0

302,520

i B7)
(169, 245)

{1,497
100,557
232,649
7,466

{ B,256)

1,376
&0

(117,402)
(133,401)
1250,803)
( 17,508)

62
33,110

16,584



1.

1381 i

(3}

()

()

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

IDENTIFICATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES:

138 Student Living Jamaica Limited (138 5L) is a limited Giability company. The
company is incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica. The registered office of the
company is located at 2 Castries Drive, University of the West Indies, Mona Campus,
Kingstan 7, 51 Andrew.

The company, (138 5L), is a publicly listed company on the Jamaica Stock Exchange,

The company was established to construct and rent living facilities at the University of
the West Indies under a 65 yvears Concession Agreement granted by the University of
the West Indies (UWI).

The terms of the Concession Agreement requires the company Lo design, linance,
conmstruct and operate 1,584 units of student accommodation in 3 development phases
in not more than 48 months.

This agreement was initially established between K Limited and the University of the
West Indies on 3 July 2014, In a Deed of Movation between University of the West
Indies, K Limited and 138 Student Living Jamaica Limited dated 13 Movember 2014,
the rights and obligations set cut in the Concession Agreement were transferred ko 138
Student Living Jamaica Limited.

The company has a 100% subsidiary, 138 5L Restoration Limited, a limited liability
company, incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica and which has a 30 years Concession
Agreement and may be extended for a further five (5) years. The concession was
granted by the University of the West Indies, Mona, for the restoration and
recanstruction of certaln traditional Halls up to 722 units.

The company and its subsidiary are referred to as “the Group™.

REPORTIMNG CURREMNCY:

Items included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the group operates (“the functional currency®), These
financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is considered the group’s
functional and presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are sef out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented. Amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

{al

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting 5tandards {IFR%), and have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as madified by revaluation of financial assel - services concession rights.
They are also prepared in accordance with requirements of the Jamaican Companies
Act,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the group's accounting policies.  althoweh these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledee of current events and action,
actual results could differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
Judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

Mew, revised and amended standards and interpretations that became effective
during the year

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been
published that became effective during the current financial year, The group has
assasted the retevance of all such new standards, interpretations and amendments and
has adopted what it considers relevant to its operations,

The group has adopted the following new and amended standards and interpretations
as of 1 October 2021:

amendments to IFR5 16, "Leases’ - Covid-19 related rent recessions - Extension of
the practical expedient (effective for annual periods beginning on or alter 1 April
2021). As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have
been granted to lesseas. Such concessions might take a varbety of forms, including
payment holidays and deferral of lease payments. On 31 March 1022, the |ASE
published an additional amendment to extend the practical expedient from 30 June
2021 te 30 June 2021. Lessees can elect to account for such rent concessions in the
same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will
result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the periods(s) in
which the event or condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs. The adoption
of this amendment did not have any impact on the group.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

1. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D):
(al Basis of preparation {(cont"d)

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effective and not early
adopted

The following new standards, amendments and interpretation which are not yet
effective and have not been adopted early in these financial statements, will or may
have an effect on the group's future financial statements:

Amendments to 1AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ on Classification of
Liabilities (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023). These narrow-scope amendments to [AS 1, ‘Presemtation of finamcial
statemnents’, clarify that liabilitles are classified as either current of non=-curment,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is
unaffected by the expectation of the entity or evenis after the reporting date (for
example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendment also
clarifies what |45 1 means when it refers to the 'settlement’ of a Hability. The group
will assess the impact of future adoption of this amendment on its financial
statements.

Amendment to IAS 16, 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective for accounting
periods beginning on ar after 1 January 2022). This amendment prohibits an entity
from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Instead, the entity will recognise such sales proceeds and
related cost in profit or loss. It also clarifies that an entity i ‘testing whether the
asset is function properly” when It assesses the technical and physical performance of
the asset. The financial performance of the asset is not relevant to this assessment.
Entities must disclose separately the amounts of proceeds and costs relating to items
produced that are not an output of the entity's ordinary activities. The group will
assess the impact of future adoption of this amendment on its financial statements.

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 cycle (effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022). These amendments include minor
changes to the following applicable standards:

(i FRS 9, 'Financial Instruments” amendment clarifies that - for the purpose of
performing the 10 per cent test' for derecognition of financial liabilities - in
determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower includes only fees
paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrawer or lender on the other®s bahalf,

{fi} IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ amendment removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements.,
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation (cont'd)

Mew standards, amendments and Interpretations not yet effective and not early
adopted (cont'd)

The group is assessing the impact the amendment will have on its 2023 financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation

Where the company has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial
and operating policies of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its
activities, it is classified as a subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements presents
the results of the company and its subsidiary (* the group”) as if they formed a single
entity. Intercompany transactions and balances betwsen group companies are therefore
aliminated in full,

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions pertaining to rental income were accounted for at a fixed
exchange rate as agreed by the University and management.

All other foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are transiated to Jamaican dollars
using the closing rate as at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of transactions at rates different from
those at the dates of the transactions and unrealized foreign exchange differences on
unsettied foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or
loss,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive
abligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whaole,
Provisions are measured al the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

k8 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):
(e} Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are recorded at historical, less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic bensfits associated
with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line basis at such rates as will write off the
carrying value of the assets over the period of their expected useful lives. Annual rates
of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Motor vehicles 5 vears

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by
reference to their carrying amounts and are taken inte account in determining surplus
ar deficil.

if) Impairment of non-current assets

Other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the greater of an asset's net selling price and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
level for which there are separately identified cash flows.

ig) Current and deferred income taxes

Current tax charges are based on taxable profits for the yvear, which differ from the
profit before tax reported because taxable profits exclude items that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's
liability for current tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax is the tax that is expected to be paid or recovered on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(gl

(h)

(i)

Current and deferred income taxes (cont'd)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises long and short term rental income and income generated from the
sub letting of space to provide services for the benefit of the hall as well as foreign
exchange differences.

Revenue from the provision of rental services is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Interest income s recognised in the income statement for all interest bearing
instruments on an accrual basis unless collectability is doubtful,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one
entity and a financial liability or equity in another entity.

Financial assets
(1) Classification

The group classifies all its financial instruments at initial recognition based on
their contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at FVPL, transaction costs are added to, or
subtracted from, this amount.

The group classifies its financial assets as those measured at amortised cost and
lair value through other comprehensive income.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):
(i) Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont'd)

(i} Classification (cont'd)
Amaortised cost

These assets arlse principally from the provision of goods and services to
customers {eq. trade recetvables), but also incorporate other types of financial
assels where the objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest (5PPI). They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision
far impairment.

The group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and
other receivables, short term deposits and cash and cash equivalents in the
statement of financial position,

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with
original maturities of three months or less.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The group has made an irrevocable election to classify its investments at fair
value through ather comprehensive income rather than through profit or loss as
the group considers this measurement o be the most representative of the
busiress model for those assets, They are carnied at fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value through other comprehensive income reserve. Upon disposal any
balance within fair value through other comprehensive income reserve is
reclassified directly to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive incomne are financlal assel - service

concession rights. derived from service concession agreements and are not
quoted in an active market,
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(i) Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont'd)

(1)

Classification (cont'd)
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

The terms of the concession agreements requires the company to design,
finance, construct and operate 2,306 units for student accommodation. Under
the first Concession Agreement UW| has guaranteed a minimum of 90%
occupancy of available rooms in any 51 weeks period for as long as the
Concession Agreement is in place, which is currently estimated to be a minfmum
of thirty (30) vears and a maximum of sixty-five (63} vears.

Under the second Concession Agreement UWI has guarantead a minimum of 90%
occupancy of available rooms for 38 weeks and 51 weeks respectively for 650
rooms and 72 rooms of the 722 rooms to be developed under this concession for
as long as the Concession Agreement ks in place, which is currently estimated to
be thirty (30) vears to a maximum of thirty- five (39) years.

Under both concessions, the units will be retumed to UW at the end of the term
of the sub-lease free of cost. The duration of the lease is equal to the duration
of the Concession Agreement.

The service concession rights as described above has been classified as a
financial asset.

Financial asset - service concesslon rights is carrted at fair value, based on
triennial valuations by a professionally qualified valuer and the intervening
pericds by the directars, These revaluations are made with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carmying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined usimg fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(i) Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont'd)

(ii)

(1ii)

Recognition and Measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized on the trade-date - the date on
which the group comnmits to purchase or sefl the asset. Financial assets are
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there s objective evidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Impairment

Impairment provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the
simplified approach within IFRS 9 using a provision matrix in the determination
of the lifetime expected credit losses (ECL).

During this process the probability of the non-payment of the trade receivables
is assessed by taking Into consideration historical rates of default for each
segment of trade receivables as well as the estimated impact of forward looking
infarmation. This probability is then multiplied by the amount of the expected
loss arising from default to determine the lifetime ECL for the trade receivables,
For trade receivables, which are reparted net, such provistons are recorded in a
separate provision account with the loss being recognised within the statement
of profit or loss. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be
collectable, the gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the
associated provision.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

()

(1)

(k)

(1)

{m)

(n)

(o)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial liabilities

The group’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs, and are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, At the reporting date, the following items were classified as financial
liabilities: trade payables, redeemable preference shares and long and short term loans.

(Receivables

Other receivables are stated at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated at amortised cost,
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributed to the
issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity.

(m) Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is stated at cost,

Preference shares

Preference shares are classified as a liability if it is redeemable on a specific date or at
the option of the stockholders, or if dividends are not discretionary. Dividends thereon
are recognised as interest in construction in progress and in the profit or loss upon
completion of construction. The group’s redeemable preference shares are redeemable
an specific dates, and bear entitlements to distributions that are cumulative and not at
the discretion of the directors. Accordingly, they are presented as financial liability.
Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

Borrowings and borrowing costs (cont’d)

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of the qualifying assets are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

Investment income earmed on the temporary investment of gualifying assets is deducted
from borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
group's shareholders. In the case of interim dividends, this is recognised when declared
by the directors.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and meet expenses; whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance;
and for which discrete financial information is available, The CODM has been identified
as The Board of Directors in particular the executive members, who make strategic
decisions.

Bazed on the information presented to and reviewed by the CODM, the entire operations
of the company are considered as one operating segment.

Related parties
A related party is a persan or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its

financial statements (referred to in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting
entity™ in this case the company).
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(r}

Related parties (cont"d)

(a)

(k)

A person or a close member of that person®s family is related to the company if
that person;

(i)
[ii)
(iii)

has control or joint controd over the company;
has significant influence over the company; or

s a member of the key management personnel
of the company or of a parent of the company.

An entity is related to the company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)

i}

{iif)

(iv)

(v)

[wi)

{wii)

(i}

The entity and the company are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
assoclate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity s a member),

{Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity iz a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the company or an entity related to the company.

The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a).

A person identified in (a){i) has sianificant influence over the entity or
= a member of the key management personnel of the entity {or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or ary member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the company of to the parent of the
COMpany.

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid a7 Anrucl Repart 302




13

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D):

(r} Related parties (cont'd)

(<)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations
between a related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES:

Judegements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies relating to recognition
of the abligation of the University of the West Indies (UWI), as Grantor, in respect
of itz guarantee of 90% occupancy of the housing unit provided under the
Concession Agreement, management has sought legal opinion on whether
occupancy by groups and students ather than “Students' as defined in the
Concession Agreement, ought ta be included in measuring the extent to which the
gCcupancy guarantee has been satisfied.

The legal opinion indicates that groups and students not included in the definition
of *Students’ and which were sourced by the group independently of UWI should
not be included in the calculation. Management has proceeded in recognizing
revenue related to the 0% occupancy guarantes on that basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the cammying amounts of assets and labilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

{1}  Fair value estimation

A number of assets and labilities included in the group's financial
statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of fair value.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D):

ib) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

i)

Fair value estimation (cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. Market price is used to determine fair value where an active market (such as
a recognized stock exchange] exists as it is the best evidence of the fair value of a
financial instrument.

The fair value measurement of the group's financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are categorized into different levels based
an how observable the inputs used in the valuation technigue are.

The standard requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level using the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than gquoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The classification of an item into the above level is based on the lowest level of the
inputs used that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement of the item.

Transfers of items between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The group measures financial instruments at fair value -
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D):

ib)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

i)

(i)

(i)

Fair value estimation (cont’d)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are
deemed to be determined as follows:

i1} The face value, less any estimated credit adjustment, for financial assets and
ltabilities with a maturity of less than one year are estimated to approximate
their fair values. These financial assets and liabilities include cash and bank
balances, receivables, payables, redeemable preference shares and short term
loan,

(ii} The carrying value for financial asset - service concession rights is based on fair
value using a revenue base approach.

The carrying value of long term liabilities approximates their fair values, as these
loans are carried at amortised cost reflecting their contractual obligations and the
interest rates are reflective of current market rates for similar transactions,

Income taxes

Estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The group recognizes Liabilities for
possible tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were originally recorded, such differences will impact income tax and deferred tax
pravisions in Lhe period in which such determination is made.

Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss (ECL) allowance for financial assets
measured at amortised cost is an area that requires the use of complex models and
significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g.
the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses). Significant
judgement s also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, such as:

- Cetermining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D):

ib) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

{iti) Measurement of the expected credit loss allowance (cont'd)

. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios for each type of product /market and the associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring
ECL.

{iv) Financial asset-service concession rights

Financial asset-service concession rights is carried in the statement of financial
position at market value. The group uses independent qualified appraisers to value
the financial asset-service concession rights triennial and the intervening pericds by
the directors. The valuation approach takes into consideration various assumptions
and factors including; the level of current and future occupancy rent rates, a
discount rate and inflation rate. A change in any of these assumptions and factors
could have a significant impact on the valuation of the financial asset-service
concession rights.

- FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT:
The group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks:

- Credit risk

= [Fair value or cash flow interest rate risk
- Foreign exchange risk

= Dther market price, and

- Liguidity risk

In common with all other businesses, the group’s activities expose it to a variety of risks that
arise from its use of financial instruments, This note describes the group’s ohjectives, policies
and processes for managing those risks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the group and the methods used to measure them.

There have been no substantive changes in the group's exposure to financial instrument risks,

its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure
them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note,
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{a) Principal financial instruments

The principal financial instruments used by the group, from which financial instrument
risk arises, are as follows:

Receivables

Cash and cash eqguivalents

Short term deposits

Fayables

Short term loans

Long term loans

Redeemable preference shares

Financial asset - service concession rights

[[=]] Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

The Group The Company
Amartised Amortised
Cost Caost
2022 2021 022 2021
j'ﬂﬂﬂ 'O E'ﬂ-ﬂﬂ §'l][|l|]
Recelvables B88,150 1,277,121 637,508 949 777
Short term depasits = Tl < 313
Cash and cash equivalents 170,444 38,935 137,030 28,911
1,058,504 1,316,816 174,538 a7 001
The Group The Company
Fair value Fair value
through other through other
comprehensive comprehensive
incame income
2022 2021 2022 2021
"0 "0 MO0 5'000
Financial asset - service
concession rights g 442 711 8,513,000 .09 701 7,009,000
Total financial assets 2,501,305 3,839,816 1,824,439 7,988,001
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{b)

(4]

Financial instruments by category (cont'd)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group The Company

20232 2021 2022 2021

$'000 5'000 5000 §'000

Payabies 267,408 937,678 167,539 690,250

Long and short term loans 4,420,003 4,421,895 2,999,003 2,999,003
Redeemable preference

shares 172,642 172,642 172,642 172,642

Total financial liabilities 4,860,053 5,532,215 3,339,184  3,861.895

Financial risk factors

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the determination of the group's risk
management objectives and policies and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for
them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure
the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the group's finance
function. The Board provides policies for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
investments of excess liguidity

The overall objective of the Board 15 to set policies that seek to reduce risk as far as
possible without unduly affecting the group's competitiveness and flexibility. Further
details regarding these policies are set out below:

(i}  Market risk

Market risk arises from the company’s use of interest hearing, tradable and foreign
currancy financial instruments, It is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates
(interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (currency risk) or other market factors
{other price risk].

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd}

(i)

Market risk (cont'd)
Currency risk

Currency risk arises from US% foreign currency cash and cash equivalents. The
group manages this risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets and
liabilities is kept to an acceptable level by monitering currency positions. The
group further manages this risk by maximizing foreign currency earmings and
holding net foreign currency assets,

Concentration of currency risk

The table below summarises the exposure to Jamaican dollar equivalents foreign
currency risk at 30 September 2022,

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
"000 £'000 '000 5'000
At 30 September 2022
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 119,574 19,654 92,193 12,926
Total financial assets 119,574 29,654 97,193 22,926
Met financial position 119,574 29,654 92,193 22,926

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the sensitivity of profit before taxation to changes
in foreign exchange rates. The change in currency rate below represents
management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis represents cutstanding foreign currency denominated cash and
bank and short term depasits accounts adjusts their translation at the year-end for
4% (2021 - 8%) depreciation and a 1% (2021 - 2%) appreciation of the Jamaican
dollar against the various currencies. The changes below would have no impact on
other components of equity,
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):
{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd)
(i) Market risk {cont'd)
Foreign currency sensitivity (cont d)

The Group and the Company

Effect on Effect on
% Change in Profit before % Change in Profit before
Currenc Currency Rate  Taxation Currency Rate Taxation
2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 $"000
usp v i1,196) vl ( 593)
usp - 4,783 -8 2,372

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a fimancial instrument will fluctuate asz a
result of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market. The group does not have a significant exposure
and as such, market price fluctuations are not expected to have a material effect
on the net results or stockholders' equity.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will flectuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

Floating rate instruments expose the group to cash flow interest rate risk,
whereas fixed rate instruments expose the group to fair value interest rate risk.

The group’s short term deposits are due to mature within 12 months of the

reporting date, while the group's long term loan are reprice within & months of
the reporting date.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd}

(i)

(if)

Market risk (cont'd)
Price risk {cont*d)
Interest rate sensitivity

There is no significant exposure to interest rate risk on short term investments, as
these deposits have a short term to maturity and are constantly reinvested aft
current market rates. There is no significant exposure on the long term loan within
the short term.

There is a significant exposure to interest rate risk on long term loan within the
short term. A 2% increase/0.5% decrease in interest rates on Jamaican dollar loans
would result in a 588,400,000 decrease/522,100,000 increase in the group profit
before tax and $59,980,000 decrease514,995,000 increase in the profit before
tax for the company. A 3% increase/0.5% decrease in 2021 would result in -
%132,657.000 decrease/521,109, 000 increase in the profit before tax for the
group and - 589,970,000 decrease/514,995,000 increase in the profit before tax
for the company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge
an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises
from trade receivables, short term deposits and bank balances,

Receivables

Fevenue transactions in respect of the group's primary operations are settled in
cash. For its operations done on a credit basis, the group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.,

Cash and bank balances

Cash transactions are limited to high credit guality fimancial institutions. The
group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial
institution.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd}

(if}

Credit risk (cont'd)
Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of
receivables, short term depoesits and cash and bank balances in the statement of
financial position.

Expected credit losses on trade receivables

The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are based on the Expected Credit Loss
{ECL) model. The guiding principle of the ECL model is to reflect the general
pattern of deterioration or improvement in the credit quality of financial
instruments.

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a financing component,
it is a requirement of IFRS 9 1o recognize a lifetime expected credit loss. This was
achieved in the current year by the development and application of historical data
relating to trade receivables and write-offs, as well as forecasting payment
protabilities basaed on historical payment pattem.

The trade receivables were analyzed in compliance with IFRS 9 and the amount
presentaed in the financial statements appears reasonable and in compliance with
the reguired standard.

The group estimates expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables using a
provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience. Based on the incurred
Ioss analyses over delinguent accounts, the credit history, risk profile of each
customer and aging of receivables, customers were placed in aging buckets and a
default risk percentage calculated for each bucket of customers. The following
table provides information about the ECLs for trade receivables as at 30
September.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

{c)

Financial risk factors {cont'd)

{ii}

Credit risk (cont'd)
Expected credit losses on trade receivables

30 September 2022

The Group
Gross Expected
Aging Carrying Amount Loss Rate
"000 %
0-30 days 13,698 .32
31-60 days 12,333 4.31
61-90 days 2,112 4.50
Owver 90 days 30,399 20,67
58,541
Uw1 Mona - 90%
Occupancy Guarantee 379,814 2.99
LWl Mona - other 480,892 2.93
913,248
30 September 2021
The Group
Gross Expected
Aging Carrying Amount Loss Rate
5’000 %
0-30 days 14,947 1.81
31-60 days 2,247 6.45
61-90 days 83y 10.63
Ower 20 days 63,688 27.65
B1,719
Uwl Mona - 90%
Qccupancy Guarantee 758,899 11.12
W1 Mona - other 553,148 .99
1,393, 766
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):
{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd)
(i) Credit risk (cont'd)
Expected credit losses on trade receivables

Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows:

2022 20321
000 000
At 1 October 2021 119,070 342,395
Reversal of provision { 58,464) (275,123)
Recefvables written off during the year
as uncollectible ( 27,.708) [ 31,486)
Provision for expected credit losses [ 4,799) [ 12,530)
Other provision 4,999 95,514
At 30 September _33,100 119,070
30 September 2022
The Company
Gross Expected
Aging Carrying Amount Loss Rate ECL Allowance
5000 % $'000
0-30 days B, 199 1.00 82
31-60 days 11,319 4.06 459
61-90 days 2,033 4,30 8
Over 90 days 19,325 20.64 3,988
40,876 4,617
0% Occupancy
Guaranies 379,338 3.00 11,380
420,214
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):
{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd)
(i)  Credit risk (cont’d)
Expected credit losses on trade receivables

30 September 2021

The Company
Gross Expected
Aging Carrying Amount Loss Rate ECL Allowance
5000 % $'000
0-30 days 11,075 1.0 111
31-60 days 1,182 5.8 &9
61-90 days 594 11.1 (121
Ower 90 days 45,005 2818 12,684
57,856 12,930
0% Qccupancy
Guarantee 107,371 11.1%9 13,220
763,227 _32.130
Movements in the impairment allowance for trade receivables are as follows:
2022 2021
5'000 5’000
At 1 October 2021 92,150 117,172
Receivables written off during the year
as uncollectible (21,271 { 26,727
Provision for expected credit losses (54,682 1,705
At 30 September 15,997 92,150

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, and the awvailability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd}

(iii)

Liguidity risk {cont'd)

Liguidity risk mamagement process

The group's liquidity management process, as carried out within the group and
monitored by the Finance Department, includes:

i) Monitoring future cash flows and liguidity on a daily basis.
(il Maintaining a portfolio of short term deposits balances that can sasily be
liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow,
{iii]  Maintaining committed lines of credit.
{iv} Optimising cash returns on investments.

iCash flows of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the group’s financial liabilities, based on contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

10 September 2022
Payables

Long term loans
Redeemable preference
Shares

Short Eerm Loans

Total financial
liabilities {centrac-
tual maturity dates)

10 September 2021
Payables

Long term ioans
Redeemable preference
shares

short term loans

Total fimancial
liabilities {contrac-
tual maturity dates)

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid

The Group
Within 1 Tto 5 Over 5
Year Years Years Total
5000 5'000 5000 5'000
207 408 . . L6/, 408
326,112 2,486, 681 3,266,018 6,078, 811
22,443 29,924 S26,B70 9. 237
217,539 . . 217,339
_ 833,509 1516605 3792888 7142995
937,678 ' . CEER YL
JHaA 805 4,098, 706 3,709, B53 fi, 093, 254
14,963 39,924 534,351 59 2317
117.539 . . 217,539
1,434,674 2,128,630 4,244,204 7827708
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

- H FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D):
{c}  Financial risk factors {cont'd)
{itiy  Liguidity risk (cont’d)

Cash flows of financial liabilities (cont'd)

The Company
Within 1 1105 Over 5§
Year Years Years Total
$°000 5’000 "000 "00o

30 September 2022

Payables 167,539 - - 167,539
Long term loans 174,396 1,370,982 2,581,839  4,117.217
Redeemable preference

shares 12,443 29,924 526,870 379237
short term loans 217,539 3 - 217,539
Total financial

liabilities {contrac-

tual maturity dates) 281,917  1,400.906 3,108,709 5,091,537
30 September 2021
Payables 690,250 . . 600 250
Long term loans 203,840 1,196,377 2,663,828 4,064,045
Redeemable preference

shares 14,962 29,9724 534,151 579,237
short term loans 217,539 - ; 217,539
Total financial

liabilities (contrac-

tual maturity dates) 1126591 L2263017 3,198,179  3,.551.0M

(d) Capital management

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for stockholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the
group defines as net operating income, excluding non-recurring items, divided by total
stockholders' equity. The Board of Directors alsa monitors the level of dividends to
stockholders.

There are no particular strategies to determine the optimal capital structure. There are
also no external capital maintenance reguirements to which the group is subject.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

INCOME:

Income represents revenue from the rental of dormitory accommodations. Long term rentals
represents 92% (2021: 94%) of the group’s revenue and 93% (2021: 97%) of the company's
revenue, Short term rental represents 8% (2021: 6%) of the groups revenue and 7% (2021: 3%) of

the company's revenue.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME:

The Grou The Company
012 2021 it 2021
62 441 a7 382
13.832 46,833 47, TET 71,632
13,894 4L2M4 47,844 FL0N4
EXPEMSES BY MATURE:
Total administrative and other expenses:
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
$'000 ‘oo0 5000 "00a
Staff costs (note ) 156,339 143,459 139,988 129,926
Advertising 3,202 661 1,794 1231
Security services 734 P67 715 247
Land lease 90,797 81,930 65,323 38,000
Cleaning i) 1,349 518 1,030
Audit fees 7,548 6,618 4,841 4,220
Legal and professional fees 16,525 86, 198 8,464 &6,012
Directors' fees 2,720 3,750 2,720 3,750
Trustee fees 7.500 7 668 4. 7049 4,615
Bank charges 11,634 8,304 9,325 B, 502
Repairs 2nd maintenance 23,363 10,263 17,349 6,028
Stationery and office supplies 2,627 3,715 2,627 3,690
Travelling and entertainment 1,753 EQ T76 89
Computer software 5,193 4,567 5,194 4,967
Litilities 103,813 85,621 59,400 44 466
Insurance 16,316 16,65 11,234 11,568
Telephane, intermet and cabie H8 660 146 734 33,028 53,014
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 4,353 | Béd) 3,567 [ 1,043
Expected credit losses [ 58,464) (194,3%2) { 54,882) [ 1,100]
Other operating expenses 29,934 5,858 13,260 3,053
Motor vehicle expenses 2,387 1,599 2,387 1,599
Impairment 2.9 19 2.5 E)
Cepreciation G4 24 G4 G4
501,315 422,017 335,571 402,846
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022
9. STAFF COSTS:

The Grou The Company
2021 2021 2022 2021
‘000 "000 $'000 5'000
salaries and wages 127,920 117,816 111,589 104,375
Statutory deductions 15,034 13,493 15,034 13,498
Staff benefits 13,385 12,135 13,365 12,083
156,339 143,459 139,988 129,926

The average number of persons employed by the group during the year was 93 (2021 - 111).

10.  FINANCE COS5TS:

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 5000 5'000 5'000
Interest expense 363,487 242,209 248,262 170,600
11. TAXATION EXPENSE:
fa) Taxation for the year comprises:
The Group The Company
20212 2021 2022 2021
5'000 $'000 $'000  5'000
Current year expense 4991  {35,4461) - -
Deferred taxation (note 15) 11,699 10,435 11,290 28175
Taxation (credit)/charge in
income statement 16,690  (25,026) 11,290 28,175

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid Anrucl Repart 302




138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

11.  TAXATION EXPENSE (CONT'D):

(k) Reconciliation of theoratical tax charge that would arise on profit before taxation using
the applicable tax rate to actual tax charge.

The Group The Company
2022 2021 20232 2021
5'000 5000 5'000 5000
Profit before taxation 335,052 196,253 238,990 144,724
Tax calculated & 25% 83,763 49,063 og, 747 36,181
Adjusted for the effects of:
Expenses not deducted for
Tax purposes [ 6,430) { 40,787} {  B.7d44) 6,323
Met effect of other charges
and allowances (_60,643) (_33,301) (39,713) (_1.633)
Taxation (credit)/charge in
income statement 16,690 (_25,026) 11,290 28,175
(c} Subject to agreement with the Commissioner General, Tax Administration Jamaica, the

campany has tax losses of 548%9,901,000 (2021 - 5512, 387,000) and the group has tax
iosses of 698,081,000 (2021 - 5740,529.000) available for offset against future taxable
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised (n respect of these losses.

12. EARNINGS PER STOCK UNIT:

Earnings per stock unit is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to stockholders by
the weighted average number of ordinary stock units in issue at year end which amounted to

414,500,000,
2022 2021
B E
Net profit attributable to
Stockholders 318,362,000 221,279,000
Earnings per stock unit 5 0.77 & 0.53
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

13.  FINANCIAL ASSET - SERVICE CONCESSION RIGHTS:

The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
&'ﬂﬂﬂ E'Dﬂ{l Q’DEID 5’01'.]!]
At cost 0,465 417 5,458,052 3,844 521 3,843,708
Addition 27,854 7,375 12,016 E13
5,493 281 5,465,427 3,856,537 3,844 521
Fair value movement
1 October 3,047,573 3,403,386 3,164,479 2,312,340
Amount recognised in other
comprehensive ncome (98,143} (355,813} 28,685 852,139
10 September 7,949,430 3,047,573 3,723,164 3,164,479
Amount recognised in the
statement of financial positicn 8. 442 711 8,513,000 e, 701 7,00% 000
[al Both 138 5tudent Living and 138 5L Restoration constructed and renovated properties
and purchased furniture and fixtures. The properties are professionally valued every
three yvears and by directors in the intervening vears. The resulting valuations at 30
September 2022 were fair valued at $7.079B for 138 Student Living Limited and 51.363B
for 138 5L Restoration Limited. The surplus or deficit arising was taken to other
comprehensive income.
(3] The valuation methodology employed for the assessment of the fair value of the subject

is an investment approach via a discounted cash flow where the following are
undertaken:

Firstly a projection of net income over the proposed periods of the Concession
Agresements to determine the likely termination dates of thess Agreements - as per the
achievements of a net IBR"s on which they are predicated, is undertaken; and

Secondly a DCF is undertaken of those likely net incomes over the projected terms for
both agreements in order to establish the fair value of each.

Specific Valuation Assumptions:

The following assumptions are made:

* A rental growth factor of 2.5% per annum s assumed, as the subject types of
accommodation generally do not show better rental growth overtime locally
and are tied to a US dollar denomination already making it fairly unstable in
Jamaican dollar terms;
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

FINANCIAL ASSET - SERVICE CONCESSION RIGHTS (CONT'D):

Specific Valuation Assumptions (cont'd):

Given the current levels of rentals and occupancies achieved, it is assumed that no
further development of the balance of rooms as per the agreement will be executed
in the foreseeable future.

Expenses are projected to grow at an anticipated rate of 2.5% per annum - in line
with a stabilised long term rate of inflation;

The projected period for an after tax 15% and 9% IRR for Concessions Agreements 1
and 2 respectively was assessed at 30 and 21 years, respectively;

Discount rate of ranging between B.0% and B.50% are used for the relevant cash
flows as against current fnstitutional investor target rates of 7% to 8.5% for more
traditional investment real estate. Student housing tends to show lower growth
rates in terms of income but are fairly stable and offer earnings that often run ‘less
cyclical’ in their performance to more traditional investment properties, hence
having the effect of reducing the ‘overall risk" in real estate portfolios.

The income that is capitalised is the net operating income from the property, which
does not include taxes (except property tax where relevant) interest on loans,
depreciation or appreciation,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

Maotor Vehicles Total

S'000 5'000
At cost 1 October 2021 3,120 3,120
Adjustment (%) (27
30 September 2022 3,093 3,093
Depreciation -
1 October 2021 1,152 1,352
Charge for the year 624 b4
30 September 2022 1,976 1,976
Het book valye -
30 September 2022 L.117 1.117
30 September 2021 1,768 1,768
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15.

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES:

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability

methoed wsing a principal tax rate of 25%.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
sel off current tax assets against current lax liabitities. The amounts determined aflter

appropriate offsetting are as follows:

The Group
2022 2021
"000 ‘000
Deferred tax liability ( 13,720} { 275)
Deferred tax asset 194,363 192,617
Met deferred tax asset 180,643 192,342

The movement in deferred taxation is as follows:

The Group
2022 2021
57000 5’000
Balance at beginning of year 192,342 202,777
Credit! (charge) for the
year (note 11) (_11,699) {_10,435)
Balance at end of year 180,643 192,343

Deferred tax is due to the following temporary differences:

The Group
20232 2021
5'000 000
Interest payable {9,809} { 7,068)
Expected crodit losses 9,444 7,47
Unused tax losses (180,278} (187,745)
Balance at end of year (180,643)  (192.342)

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid

The Company
2022 2021
$'000 ‘000
{ 13,7200 [ 275)
136,155 134,000
122,435 133,725
The Company
2022 2021
5'000 000
133,725 161,900
(L 11,290) {_28.175)

122,435 133,723

The Company
2022 2021
§'nm:r "000
{ 7.922) i 5,904)

13,720 75
(128,233) (128,096)
(122.,435) (133,725}
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY:

2022 2021
5’000 5000
Investment of the company in the subsidiary:
138 5L Restoration Limited 466, 000 466,000
RECEIVABLES:
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Q00 "0 "000 "000
Receivables 58,542 81,719 40,876 57,856
Advance to contractor . . 2, B56 .
Prepayments and deposits 1,279 BZ3 1279 B23
138 5L Resteration Limited - - 231,594 174,276
Other receivables 15,866 2,314 12,449 ey
Lw1 Mona 860,706 1,312,047 379,338 707,371
536,393 1,395,903 668,392 1,040,557

Less: Provision for expected
credit losses {33,000y  (_119.070) (_15.997) (__92.150)

F03,233 1,277,833 632.3%3 348,407

Included in the amount receivable from UW!| Mona is 5480,892,000 (2021 - $553,148,000) which
represents claim made under the Concession Agreement for recovery of revenue foregone by
the group consequent on UWI variation of the configuration of some double occupancy units in
the Irvine Hall residence into single occupancy units. The amount of the claim is necessarily an
estimate and may be settled at a significantly different amount. Such difference would be
recorded in the period in which it is determined. A provision of 514,069,000 {2021 -516,5%4,000)
15 recognised in respect of this claim.

SHORT TERM DEPOSITS:

This represents deposits with financial institutions with original maturities of greater than 20
days but less than 1 year.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
The Group The Campany
2022 2021 2022 201
‘000 5'000 5"000 5000
Forgign currency accounts 119,574 29, 654 92,193 22,924
Jamaican currency current accounts 50,810 T 44 777 5,961
Cash in hand &0 24 60 24
170,444 38,935 137,030 28,911
20. SHARE CAPITAL:
The Group and the Company
2022 2021
5'000 5'000
Authorised -
480,500,000 ordinary shares at no par value
94, 500,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares
Stated capital -
414,500,000 ordinary shares issued and fully paid 721,153 721,153
34 528 500 preference shares issued and fully paid 173 647 172 643
893,795 893,795
Shares issued to professionals for other than cash
{share based payment) 415,565 433,565
Initial public offering 505,6% 505,691
Less: IPO transactions costs (47 .461) {47 461)
458,230 458,230
Closing balance 893,795 893,795
Less redeemable preference shares required by IFRS to
be accaounted for as labilities in the financial statements [ 172,642) (172,042)
121,153 721133

AL the end of the reporting period, the company's Issued and fully paid up ordinary share capital
stood at 414,500,000, This includes shares allotted in the initial public offering in November
2014 of 82,900,000 at a price of 54.00 per share.

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D):

As part of the initial public offering, the company also offered 33,680,000 cumulative
redeemable preference shares at 55.00 per share. Arising from the over-subscription for these
shares, an additional 848,000 shares were issued o subscribers. Preference dividend for the
yiears 2014 to 2018 were accumulated and paid in 2022 and annually thereafter. Dividend yield
an preference shares is indexed to the Government of Jamalca 180 day weighted average
Treasury Bill yield plus a premium of three percent. The paid up share capital for both classes is
net of transaction cost incurred of 47,461,000, an amount of 529,506,000 was included in the
linancial asset - service concession rights.

Share based payment

Share based payment arrangements are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received or the fair value of the equity instruments granted using the option pricing model, the
inputs 1o that model being the share price, exercise price and the expected dividends.

The share based payment (s recognised as part cost of the financial asset - service concession
rights with a corresponding increase in equity.

The share based payment arrangement entered on 13 Movember 2014 issued ordinary shares in
lieu of payment for fees for consultancy and other services.

The members are prohibited from disposing of mare than:

50% of their respective holdings of ordinary shares in Phase 1
A further 50% of their remaining holdings in Phase 2
- The remainder of their holdings in Phase 3

FAIR VALUE RESERVE:
This represents fair value movement in financial asset - service concession rights,

OTHER RESERVE:

This represents the wvalue of shares in subsidiary, 138 5L Restoration Limited, acquired for
consideration other than cash.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG TERM LOANS:

30 SEPTEMBER 2022
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021

JOSD Trustees Services Limited -« Trustes
for noteholders (series 1, 24, 28 and D) 4,210,003 4 210,003 4,789,003 2,789, 003

Sagicor loan {if) - 1,892

4,210,003 4,211,895 2,789,003 2,789,003

Less - current portion [ 362.634) - (__205,680)

(i}

i)

3,847,369 4,211,893 2,983,323 2,789,003

This represents long term notes issued through CIBC FirstCaribbean International Bank,
with JCSD Trustee Services Limited being the Trustee for the note holders, with fifteen
{15) years tenure and a two () year extension was granted and seven (7) years carmying
interest at six (6) months weighted average treasury bill yield (WATBY) plus 350 basis
points and one loan at a fixed rate of 8.5%. During the financial year 2021, series 24 and
2B secured note were restructured and approved by the Bondholders for maturity date
to be 29 June 2027 in lieu of 29 June 2025,

series 1 secured note was also restructured and approved by the bondholders for
maturity date to be 20 September 2032 in lieu af 20 September 2030, Series D secured
roke was restructured and approved by the bondholders for maturity date to be 31 May
2028 in lieu of 31 May 2016,

This loan is secured by first demand debenture over fixed and floating assets of 138
student Living Jamaica Limited, it attracts interest at 7.5% per annum and is for a
period of 4 years, The loan was repaid during the year.

The loan facilities are secured by the followina:

{a] Debenture over the fixed and floating assets of the issuer inclusive of the building
under Phase1.

ib}) Assignment of rights under Concession Agreement to cover Phase 1 of the project.

ic) Assignment of all insurance policies.,

id) Assignment of lease for the benefit of the note holders.

ie} Debt service reserve account with at least one period debt service.

if) Promissory notes

ig) Maintenance reserve account with minimum value of deposits of up to 3% of the
total value of the building.

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid Annual Repoet 206832
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

LONG TERM LOANS (CONT'D):

The subsidiary, 138 5L Restoration Limited also raised funding for the renovation works for
Gerald Lalor Hall and the reconstruction of Irvine Hall through long term instruments issued
through Victoria Mutual Wealth Management and Money Masters Limited to raise up to 52.795
billion for a period of 15 years. Interest is fixed at 11.5% for the first six months and thereafter
a variable rate of 350 basis points above the weighted average rate applicable to the six month
Jamaica Treasury Bill Tender [WATBY).

PAYABLES:
The Group The Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
$'000 $'000 ‘000 £"000
Trade payables 42,467 381,482 35,653 370,595
Rent deposit 193,106 115,490 157,630 71,942
Due to contractor 15,966 16,535 10,966 11,535
Loan interest 39,237 28,269 31,6388 23,614
Interast payable (related to
dividend on preference shares) 38,615 26,331 38,615 26,331
University of The West Indies 160,360 423,948 102,881 281,800
Other 42,123 120,690 23,704 31,136

361,874 1,112,745 401,137 816,933

SHORT TERM LOANS:

Sagicor Bank Jamaica Limited extended an unsecured line of credit for twelve months at an
interest rate of 8% per annum with a maturity date of 21 June 2022. This was repaid during the
year and a new unsecured line of credit for twelve months at an interest rate of 8% per annum
with maturity date of 11 June 2023 was obtained. The other Sagicor loan is unsecured at a rate
of interest of %€ per annum and matured 30 September Z023.
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

26.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES:

The Group and the Company

2022 2021
"000 $°000
Transactions during the year
138 5L Restoration Limited - payments made 202 ;484 124,832
138 5L Restoration Limited - Beimbursements 243,166 121,688
Eey management compensation -
Key management includes senior manager -
Salaries and other short-term employee henefits _19.922 15,856
Directors’ emoluments -
Fees _ 2,720 __3,750
Year end balances
With related company:
Due from 138 5L Restoration Limited
(included in receivables) 131,594 174,276
27.  NET PROFIT:
2022 2021
"000 5'000
Reflected in the financial statements af:
The company 227 10 139,832
Subsidiary 90,562 104,730
318,362 144,562
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

LEASE COMMMITMENTS:

Lease commitments to be paid annually over the life of the Concession Agreement, is subject to
the agreed terms contained therein and at 1,584 rooms (100% bufld out) at the end of phase 3,
the company will be ljable to pay $100,000,000 per annum adjusted for 50% of the annual
Jamaican Consumer Price Index, unpaid rooms and residents breaking contracts. Payments
during phases 1 and 2 were calculated based on the number of rooms and the other adjustable
factors mentioned. Rooms completed to date total 1008.

138 SL Restoration Limmited lease commitment i based on the maximum 722 rooms as a
percentage of 1,584 rooms and 100,000,000 adjusted for the Consumer Price Index and other
factors mentioned above,

IMPACT OF COVID-19:

The World Health Organization declared the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a pandemic
on 11 March 2020. The pandemic and the measures to contrel its human impact have resulted
in disruptions to economic activities and business operations.

The following measures that were taken by management In 2020 remained in force for 2022:

i Consolidation of accommadation thus reducing utility and staff costs (primarily security
and housekeeping which forms our largest staff classification);

i Deferral of some capital expenditures.

iif. Minimize maintenance activities to only essential services.,

For the 2021 financial wear the Covid-19 pandemic continue to have a negative impact on
occupancy and revenues. During the period, accupancy recovered from an average of 36% in the
prior year to an average of 52% during the current financial year.

The Lifting of the COVID-19 restrictions and the subsequent return to face to face classes has
resulted in a return to normaley. Although the Ministry of Health and Wellness relaxed the
national COVID-19 measures, the management of 138 5L continues to place high priority on the
health and wellbeing of our employees and residents. We have choten to maintain certain
safety measures that were implemented.

Additionally, 138 Student Living Jamaica limited and 138 5L Restoration Limited are both

governed by Concession Agreements with the UWI. The Concession Agreements guarantee a 90%
occupancy of the accommodation.
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30.

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES:

Restatement of prior balances relate ta adjustment for deferred tax asset.

Effect on the group’s statement of comprehensive income at 30 September 2020;

REVEMLE:
Income

Other operating income

EXPENSES:

Administrative and other expenses
FROFIT FROM OPERATION

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

HET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Item that will or may not be reclassified to
Profit or loss -

Change in fair value of financial asset -

Service concession rights

TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid

As previously

reported
2

1,217,865
107,428
1,325,293

(__757,366)

567,727
(_ 257,358
310,369
6,410

PR M A

116,779

(1,328,037)

(1.011,258)

Effect af
restatement

As restated

2

$
1,217,865

107,428

1,325,293

(__757,566)

( 65,053)

567,727
(_ 257,358)
310,369

{  58,641)

{ 65,053)

251,726

(1,328,037)

(_65.053)

(1,076,311}
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the group’s statement of financial position at 30 September 2020:

As previously Effect of
reported restatement  As restated
3 2 2
ASSETS:
HOR-CURRENT ASSETS:
Financial assets- service concession rights B,B51,443 B, 861,443
Property, plant and equipment 2,392 5 2392
Deferred Lax assels 267,830 [ &5,063) 202,777
Cither asset 3,850 = 3,850
9,135,515 (65,053} 9,070,462
CURREMT ASSETS:
Receivables 819,946 619,944
Taxation recoverable 24 509 24 509
thort term deposits 258 560 258,580
Cash and cazh eguivalents 43,484 43,484
946,499 046,499
10,082,014 (_65.053) 10,016,961
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES:
EQLITY:
Share r:.apit:nl 721,153 721,153
Fair value reserves 3,403,391 . 3,403 331
Retained sarnings 409,963 {__&5,053) 344,910
4.534 507 {85 053} 4,459 454
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long term loans 4,706,004 4,206,004
Redeemable preference shares 172,643 172,643
4,378,646 4,378, 646
CUURENT LIABILITIES:
Payahles B25,179 825,179
Taxation 42 644 47 644
Shart term loans 135,000 135,000.
Current portion of long term loans 166,038 166,038
1,168,861 1,168,861
10,084,014 (65,053 10,016,961

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid
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30.

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the group®s statement of cash flow on 30 September 2020

As previously Effect of
reported restatement
5'000 5'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES:
Met profit 316,779 [ 66,053}
Items not affecting cash resources:
Effect of foreign exchange gain [ 1,799} =
Taxation expense | & 4109 65,053
Interest incomse [ 7,875) %
Interest expense 257,358 2
Depreciation 614 2
Loss an disposal of financial assets 10 E
558,087 -
Change in operating assets and Habilities:
Other asset ( 7 -
Receivables (313,245) =
Taxation recoverable [ 1,739 '
Payables 90,679
Cash provided by operating activities 314,295 .

CASH FLOWS FROM |NVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to financial asset - service concession

rights { 10,071} E

Shart term deposits Ba0 z

Interest received 7,661 ¥

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &0 -
Cazh used in investing activities 1,660}

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Intersst paid {189, 583) *
Loans received . ‘
Loans repaid {139,905}

Cash used in financing activities (329 488}

DECREASE IM CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS [ &,853) -

Exchange effect on foreign cash balance 1,24 -

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 49,116

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 43,484 e

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid Anrucl Repart 302
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5000
751,726

{1,799
58 643

| 7.B75)
257 358
B4
10

558,687
{ 87)
(323,245)
{1,739

90,679

324,295

{ 10,071)
690
7,661
___ 60

{_1,660)

(189,583}
(129,905)
|329,488}
{ 6,853)

1,221
49.116
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Restatement of prior balances relate ta adjustment for deferred tax asset.

Effect on the group’s statement of comprehensive income at 30 September 2021:

REVEMUE:
Income

Other oparating income

EXPEMSES:

Administrative and other expenses
PROFIT FROM QOPERATION

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation

HET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Item that will or may not be reclassified to
Profit or loss -

Change in fair value of financtal asset -

service concession rights

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid

As previously

reported
5'000

813,205

47,2874

860,479

(422,017}

438,462
(242,209}
196,253
48, 30%

244,562

{_ 355,818}

{111,256}

Effect of

restatement

000

(__23,283)

( 23,283

(_23.283)

A RBepart 20E2

As restated
"O00

£13,205
47 274
B60, 479
(422,017)
438,463
(242,206}

196,253

{355,818)

(134,539)
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the group’s statement of financial position at 30 September 2021:

As previously Effect of
reported restatement As restated
3 3 ]
SSETS:
HOM-CURRENT ASSETS:
Financial assets- service concession rights 8,513,000 8,513,000
Property, plant and equipment 1,768 . 1,768
Deferred tax assets 280 &67E | BE. 336) 192,342
8,795, 446 (_388,336) B.707,110
CURREMT ASSETS:
Receivables 1,277 8313 - 1,277,833
Taxation recoverable 24,742 - 24,742
Short term deposits Jed - 7o
Cash and cash equivalents 38,935 38,935
1,342,270 1,342,270
10,137,716 (_88,336) 10,049,380
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES:
EQUITY:
Share capital 721,153 - 721,153
Fair value reserves 3,047,573 - 3,047,573
Retained earnings 654,525 { B88,336) 566,189
4,423,251 (_ 86,336) 4,334,915
HOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long term loans 4,211,895 = 4,011,895
Redeemable preference shares 172,642 172,642
4,384,537 4,184 537
CUURENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 1,112,745 - 1,112,745
Taxaltion 7,183 7,183
Short term loang 210 000 - 210, 000
Current portion of long term loans - -
1,329,928 1,329 928
10,137,716 (_88,336)  10.049,380

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the group®s statement of cash flow on 30 September 2021:

As previously Effect of
reported restatement As restated
£'000 $'000 5'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Met profit 244 562 | 23,283) 221,279
Items not affecting cash resources:
Effect of foreign exchanege gain { d64) : ( S64)
Taxation expense { 48,309) 23,283 { 25,026)
Interest income i 441} . { 441}
Interest expense 242,109 - 247,209
Depreciation oid - ¥
Loss on disposal of financial assets 5 . 5
437 776 : 437,776
Change in operating assets and [iabilities:
Other-asset 3,850 . 3,850
Recelvables (662, 156) . {662,156}
Taxation recoverabls { 234} - { 234}
Payables 362,133 - 362,133
Cash provided by operating activities 141,369 . 141,369
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to financial asset - service CONCEssion
rights [ 7,375) . ( 7,375}
Short term deposits 257,799 . 257,799
Interest received 1,566 = 1,565
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets 7 = i
Cash used in investing activities 251,997 - 291,997
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAHCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid {313,632) . {313,632)
Loans received 75,000 - 73,000
Loans repaid {160,147) > {160,147}
Cash used in flinancing activities 1398, 77%9) . {398,779}
DECREASE IM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 5,413) - (  5,413)
Exchange affect on foreian cash balance a4 . B
Cash and cash eqguivalents at beginning of year 43, 484 . 43 484
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EMD OF YEAR 38,935 = _38,935
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Restatement of prior balances relate ta adjustment for deferred tax asset.

Effect on the company®s statement of comprehensive income at 30 September 2020;

As previously Effect of
restatement As restated
000 5'000 5'000
REVENMUE:
Incame 689,355 - 689,355
Other operating income 117,691 2 117,691
BOT, 046 . 807,046
EXPEMSES:
Administrative and other expenses (496, 752) - (496, 752)
FROFIT FROM OPERATION 310,294 - 310,294
Finance costs (185,177) ¥ (185,177)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 125,117 - 125 117
Taxation 33,827 (65,053) (_31,226)
MET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 158,944 |65,0583) 93,891
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
[bern that will or may not be reclassified to
Profit or loss -
Change in fair value of financial asset -
Service concession rights (572, 486) 5 (572,4586)
TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (413,542) {65,053) (478,595)
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30.

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the company’s statement of financial position at 30 September 2020:

ASSETS:

MHOM-CURRENT ASSETS:

Financial assets- service concession rights
Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Imvestment in subsidiary

CLRRENT ASSETS:
Receivabileg

Tazation recoverabls
Short term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

EQUITY aND LIABILITIES:
EQUITY:

Share capital

Fair value reserves
Resarse

Retained earnings

MOM-CLIRRENT LIABILITIES:
Long term loans
Redeemable preference shares

CUURENT LIABILITIES:

Payables

Taxation

Current portion of long term loans

138 Student Lving Jamaco Lid

As previously

reported
§'000

6,156,048
2,392
226,953
466,000

6,853,726

517,756
12,521
215,410

16,584

782,282

{636, 008

721,153
2,112,340
466,000
219,001

—tr s

2,775,977
172,642

2,948 619

867, 76T
135,000
166,018

968,805

Effect of
restatement

5000

{ 65,053)

As restated

57000

&, 156,048
2,192
161,900
466, 000

(_55,053)

B /B8 673

517,756
22,512
225,420
16,584

782,282

1,370,953

721,153
2,312,340
466,000
154,018

2,775,977
172 642

Z,948 619

667,767
135,000
166,038

968,805

|_63,033)

A RBepart 20E2
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30.

138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the company’s statement of cash flow on 30 September 2020

As previously Effect of
reported restatement As restated
"O00 $'000 5'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Het profit 158,944 [ 63,053) 93,89
[tems not affecting cash resources:
Effect of foreign exchange gain [ 1,560) . [ 1,560)
Taxation expense { 33,827) 55,053 31,226
Interest income [ 6.848) - [ 6.848)
Interest expense 185,177 185,177
Depraciation 64 6l4
Loss on disposal of financial assets 10 10
302,530 - 302,520
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Other asset | 87 { a7
Receivables (169,245 (16%,245)
Taxation recoverable [ 1,4%6) [ 1,4%6)
Payables 100,957 100,957
Cash provided by operating activities 232,649 232 640
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to financial asset - service concession
rights { 8.256) { 8,256)
ahort term deposits 1,376 1.376
interest received 7,466 7,466
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets 60 31
Cash used in investing activities Bd6 - o)
CASH FLOWS FROM FIMAMCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid (117,402) (117,402)
Loans received - . -
Loans repaid {123,401) - (123,401)
Cash used in financing activities (250,803 ) {250,B03 )
DECREASE IN CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS ( 17,508) i 17,508)
Exchange effect on foreign cash balance Qg2 982
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year _33.110 P _ 33,110
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 16,584 s 14,584
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the company®s statement of comprehensive income at 30 September 2021

As previously Effect of
reported restatement As restated
$"000 5'000 $'000
REVEMUE:
Income 646,156 - 641,156
Other operating income 72,014 . 72,014
718,170 . 718,170
EXPENSES:
Administrative and other expenses [402,846) > (402, 626
PROFIT FROM QPERATION 315,324 = 313,314
Finance costs (170, &00 ) - 1170, 6040
FROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 144,714 - 144,724
Taxation {4,893} {23,283} {_28.,175)
MET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 139,832 (23,283} 116,540
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME:
ftem that will or may not be reclassified to
Profit or loss -
Change in fair value of financial asset -
Service concession rights 552,139 - 852,139
TOTAL COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 991,971 (23,283) 963, 688
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

30. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the company®s staterment of financial position at 30 September 2021:

As praviously Effect of
reported restatement As restated
j'[ﬂ]ﬂ o000 §'DDI:]
ASSETS:
HOM-CURREMT ASSETS:
Financial assets- service concession rights 7,009,000 - 7,009,000
Property, plant and equipment 1,768 : 1,768
Deferred tax assets 222,061 | B8,3356) 133,725
Imvestment in subsidiany 466, 000 5 456 000
7698 829 {_88.336) 7,610,493
CURRENT ASSETS:
Receivables 948,407 * 948,407
Taxation recoverable 1,693 . 22,693
Short term deposits 313 = 313
Cash and cash eguivalents 18,911 . 28,911
1,000,324 - 1,000,324
8,699,133 {88,336 8,610,817
EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES:
EQUITY:
Share capital 721,153 - 21,153
Fair value reserves 3,164,479 . 3,164 479
Reserve 466,000 . 466,000
Retained eamings 358,923 {_88,33a) 270,587
4,710,535 {__88,336) 4,622,219
MNOM-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long term loans 2,789,003 - 2,789 003
Redeemable preference shares 172, 62 - 172,642
2,961,645 . 2,961,645
CUURENT LIABILITIES:
Payables 816,953 - B16,953
Taxation 210,000 = 210,000
1,026,953 - 1,026,953
8,699,153 (_88,336) 8,610,817
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138 STUDENT LIVING JAMAICA LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 SEPTEMBER 2022

RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES (CONT'D):

Effect on the company’s statement of cash flow on 30 September 2021:

As proviously Effect of
reported restatement
5'000 "0oag
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit 139,832 { 23,283)
ltems not affecting cash resources:
Effect of foreign exchange gain [ 1,045) -
Taxation expense 4,892 23,283
Interest income { JB1) -
Interest expense 170,600 *
Depreclation 624 .
Gain on disposal of financial assets i 5) -
114,516 .
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Other asset 2,333 =
Recaivables (431,581} -
Taxation recoverable i 172} -
Payables 203,587
Cash provided by operating activities BB, 683 =

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIMITIES:
Additions to financial asset - service concession

rights { 813) -
short term deposits 225,106 -
Interest received 1,312 £
Proceeds from disposal of financial assels i .
Cash provided by investing activitles 225,612 -
CASH FLOWS FROM FIMANCING ACTIVITIES:
interest paid [Z25,007) =
Loans recelved 75,000 -
Loans repaid (153,012} 5
Cash used In financing activities (303,013) .
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,282
Exchange effect on foreign cash balance 1,045

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 16,584 =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 28,911
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As restated
5'000

116,549

[ 1,045)
4,892

{ 38D)
170,600
624

i 5)

314,516

2,333
{431,581)

{  172)
203,587

88,683

{ 813)
223,106
1,312
¥

£25,612

(225,001)
75,000
(153,012}

(303,013)
11,282

1,045
16,584

28,911



1381

NOTES

138 Srudent Living Jomaico Lid Anrucl Repart 302




' -
e

LESLIE ROBINSOM HALL
SECURITY POST




HOUSEKEEPING TEAM
TRAIMIMNG SESSION

PEP AWARDS PRESENTATION FOR
CHILDREN OF MEMBERS OF STAFF

—

STAFF INDEPENDENCE
BREAKFAST

wa Arnual Repos 2022




1381 skl

STUDENT Loty

PEFERIENCE OWE COMMUONITTY

Mailing Address
128 Student Living Jomaica Limited
2 Castries Drive, UWI Mona Compus,
Kingston 7, Jamaica

Telephone: (55 665-1235-9
Registered Office

2 Castries Drive, UWI Mona Campus,
Eingston 7, Jomaica




